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DongGuan OPPO Precision Electronic 
Corp, Ltd., a subsidiary of Guandong 
OPPO. IFT also moved to add 
allegations asserting the ’012, ’572, and 
’236 patents against Qualcomm and 
Vizio based on information learned in 
discovery. On May 29, 2019, Qualcomm 
and Vizio opposed the amendment and 
argued that IFT could have discovered 
the relevant information through 
diligent investigation. On June 5, 2019, 
IFT moved for leave to file a reply in 
support of its motion. 

On June 13, 2019, the ALJ, pursuant 
to Commission Rule 210.14(b) (19 CFR 
210.14(b)), issued the subject ID, 
granting the motion to amend the 
complaint and notice of investigation. 
The ALJ also granted leave to file the 
reply. No petitions for review of the ID 
were received. 

The Commission has determined not 
to review the subject ID. 

The authority for the Commission’s 
determination is contained in section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part 
210 of the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 
210). 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: July 10, 2019. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2019–15012 Filed 7–15–19; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1150] 

Certain Data Transmission Devices, 
Components Thereof, Associated 
Software, and Products Containing the 
Same; Commission Determination Not 
To Review an Initial Determination To 
Terminate the Investigation With 
Respect to All Name Respondents 
Based on Withdrawal of the Complaint; 
and Termination of the Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that 
the U.S. International Trade 
Commission (the ‘‘Commission’’) has 
determined not to review an initial 
determination (‘‘ID’’) (Order No. 8) to 
terminate the investigation with respect 
to all named respondents based on the 
withdrawal of the complaint. The 
investigation is terminated. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Carl 
P. Bretscher, Office of the General 
Counsel, U.S. International Trade 

Commission, 500 E Street SW, 
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 
205–2382. Copies of non-confidential 
documents filed in connection with this 
investigation are or will be available for 
inspection during official business 
hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the 
Office of the Secretary, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street SW, Washington, DC 20436, 
telephone (202) 205–2000. General 
information concerning the Commission 
may also be obtained by accessing its 
internet server (https://www.usitc.gov). 
The public record for this investigation 
may be viewed on the Commission’s 
Electronic Docket Information System 
(‘‘EDIS’’) (https://edis.usitc.gov). 
Hearing-impaired persons are advised 
that information on this matter can be 
obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal, telephone 
(202) 205–1810. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On April 
5, 2019, the Commission instituted the 
present investigation based on a 
complaint filed by Data Scape Ltd. of 
Sandyford, Ireland, and C-Scape 
Consulting Corp. of Rockville Centre, 
New York (collectively, 
‘‘Complainants’’). 84 FR 13717 (April 5, 
2019). The complaint alleges violations 
of 19 U.S.C. 1337, as amended (‘‘Section 
337’’), in the importation, sale for 
importation, and sale in the United 
States after importation of certain data 
transmission devices, components 
thereof, associated software, and 
products containing the same that 
allegedly infringe one or more of the 
asserted claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 
7,720,929; 7,617,537; and 8,386,581. Id. 
The notice of investigation named the 
following respondents: Verizon 
Communications, Inc. (‘‘VCI’’) of New 
York, New York; Cellco Partnership d/ 
b/a Verizon Wireless of Basking Ridge, 
New Jersey (‘‘Verizon Wireless’’); Apple 
Inc. of Cupertino, California; 
Amazon.com, Inc. of Seattle, 
Washington; and Amazon Digital 
Services, LLC of Seattle, Washington 
(collectively, ‘‘Respondents’’). The 
Office of Unfair Import Investigations 
(‘‘OUII’’) was also named as a party. Id. 

The Commission previously 
terminated the investigation with 
respect to VCI. Order No. 6 (May 16, 
2019), not reviewed, Comm’n Op. (June 
16, 2019). 

On May 29, 2019, Complainants filed 
an unopposed motion to withdraw the 
complaint and terminate the 
investigation as to all named 
respondents. Complainants also moved 
to stay the investigation’s procedural 
schedule pending the outcome of the 
motion. On May 31, 2019, Respondents 

filed a response supporting the motion 
because the U.S. District Court for the 
Central District of California recently 
held that each of the patents at issue is 
invalid under 35 U.S.C. 101 for failure 
to claim patentable subject matter. On 
June 6, 2019, OUII also filed a response 
in support of the motion. 

On May 30, 2019, the presiding 
administrative law judge (‘‘ALJ’’) issued 
Order No. 7, granting the request to stay 
the procedural schedule. On June 13, 
2019, the ALJ issued the subject ID 
(Order No. 8) granting the motion to 
terminate the investigation. No party 
filed a petition to review the subject ID. 

The Commission has determined not 
to review the subject ID. This 
investigation is terminated. 

The authority for the Commission’s 
determination is contained in Section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in Part 
210 of the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 
210). 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: July 10, 2019. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2019–15011 Filed 7–15–19; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Notice of Lodging of Proposed 
Consent Decree Under the Clean Air 
Act 

On July 11, 2019, the Department of 
Justice lodged a proposed Consent 
Decree with the United States District 
Court for the Northern District of Illinois 
in the lawsuit entitled United States v. 
Clean Harbors Recycling Services of 
Chicago, LLC, et al., Civil Action No. 
19–cv–4657. 

The United States filed a Complaint 
in this lawsuit seeking civil penalties 
and injunctive relief from Defendants 
Clean Harbors Recycling Services of 
Chicago, LLC, and Clean Harbors 
Recycling Services of Ohio, LLC 
(collectively ‘‘Clean Harbors’’) for 
alleged violations of the Clean Air Act, 
42 U.S.C. 7401–7671q, at Clean Harbors’ 
spent industrial solvent treatment, 
storage, and disposal facilities in 
Chicago, Illinois, and Hebron, Ohio (the 
‘‘Facilities’’). The Complaint alleges that 
Clean Harbors has violated statutory and 
regulatory requirements applicable to 
solvent storage tanks at the Facilities 
arising under the Clean Air Act and 
National Emission Standards for 
Hazardous Air Pollutants (‘‘NESHAP’’) 
regulations promulgated by the U.S. 
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Environmental Protection Agency, 
including the NESHAP general 
provisions (codified at 40 CFR part 63, 
subpart A) and the NESHAP for Off-Site 
Waste and Recovery Operations 
(codified at 40 CFR part 63, subpart DD). 

When the Complaint was filed, the 
United States also lodged a proposed 
Consent Decree that would settle the 
claims asserted in the Complaint. 
Among other things, the proposed 
Consent Decree would require Clean 
Harbors to implement appropriate 
injunctive relief to control air pollutant 
emissions from storage tanks at the 
Facilities, undertake additional 
mitigation measures to help offset 
unauthorized past air pollutant 
emissions, and pay a total of $405,000 
in civil penalties to the United States. 

The publication of this notice opens 
a period for public comment on the 
proposed Consent Decree. Comments 
should be addressed to the Assistant 
Attorney General, Environment and 
Natural Resources Division, and should 
refer to United States v. Clean Harbors 
Recycling Services of Chicago, LLC, et 
al., D.J. Ref. No. 90–5–2–1–11990. All 
comments must be submitted no later 
than thirty (30) days after the 
publication date of this notice. 
Comments may be submitted either by 
email or by mail: 

To submit 
comments: Send them to: 

By email ....... pubcomment-ees.enrd@
usdoj.gov. 

By mail ......... Assistant Attorney General, 
U.S. DOJ—ENRD, P.O. 
Box 7611, Washington, DC 
20044–7611. 

During the public comment period, 
the proposed Consent Decree may be 
examined and downloaded at this 
Justice Department website: https://
www.justice.gov/enrd/consent-decrees. 

We will provide a paper copy of the 
proposed Consent Decree upon written 
request and payment of reproduction 
costs. Please mail your request and 
payment to: Consent Decree Library, 
U.S. DOJ—ENRD, P.O. Box 7611, 
Washington, DC 20044–7611. 

Please enclose a check or money order 
for $18.75 (25 cents per page 
reproduction cost) payable to the United 
States Treasury. 

Randall M. Stone, 
Acting Assistant Section Chief, 
Environmental Enforcement Section, 
Environment and Natural Resources Division. 
[FR Doc. 2019–15087 Filed 7–15–19; 8:45 am] 
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DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Employee Benefits Security 
Administration 
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Proposed Exemption From Certain 
Prohibited Transaction Restrictions 
Credit Suisse Group AG (CSG) and Its 
Current and Future Affiliates, Including 
Credit Suisse AG (CSAG) (Collectively, 
Credit Suisse or the Applicant) 
Located in Zurich, Switzerland 

AGENCY: Employee Benefits Security 
Administration, Labor. 
ACTION: Notice of proposed exemption. 

SUMMARY: This document contains 
notice of pendency before the 
Department of Labor (the Department) of 
a proposed temporary five-year 
individual exemption from certain of 
the prohibited transaction restrictions of 
the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 (ERISA or the Act) 
and/or the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986 (the Code). If this proposed 
exemption is granted, certain entities 
with specified relationships to CSAG 
will not be precluded from relying on 
the exemptive relief provided by 
Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption 
84–14. 
DATES: If granted, this exemption will be 
effective for five years following the 
date exemptive relief is no longer 
available under PTE 2015–14. 

Written comments and requests for a 
public hearing on the proposed 
exemption should be submitted to the 
Department by August 30, 2019. 
ADDRESSES: All written comments and 
requests for a hearing (at least three 
copies) should be sent to the Employee 
Benefits Security Administration 
(EBSA), Office of Exemption 
Determinations, U.S. Department of 
Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue NW, 
Suite 400, Washington, DC 20210, 
Attention: Application No. D–11962 or 
via private delivery service or courier to 
the Employee Benefits Security 
Administration (EBSA), Office of 
Exemption Determinations, U.S. 
Department of Labor, 122 C St. NW, 
Suite 400, Washington, DC 20001. 
Attention: Application No. D–11962. 
Interested persons may also submit 
comments and/or hearing requests to 
EBSA via email to e-OED@dol.gov or by 
FAX to (202) 693–8474, or online 
through http://www.regulations.gov. 
Any such comments or requests should 
be sent by the end of the scheduled 
comment period. The application for 
exemption and the comments received 
will be available for public inspection in 

the Public Disclosure Room of the 
Employee Benefits Security 
Administration, U.S. Department of 
Labor, Room N–1515, 200 Constitution 
Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20210. 
See SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION below 
for additional information regarding 
comments. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Ms. 
Blessed Chuksorji-Keefe of the 
Department at (202) 693–8402. (This is 
not a toll-free number.) 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Comments 
Comments should state the nature of 

the person’s interest in the proposed 
exemption and the manner in which the 
person would be adversely affected by 
the exemption, if granted. A request for 
a hearing can be requested by any 
interested person who may be adversely 
affected by an exemption. A request for 
a hearing must state: (1) The name, 
address, telephone number, and email 
address of the person making the 
request; (2) the nature of the person’s 
interest in the exemption and the 
manner in which the person would be 
adversely affected by the exemption; 
and (3) a statement of the issues to be 
addressed and a general description of 
the evidence to be presented at the 
hearing. The Department will grant a 
request for a hearing made in 
accordance with the requirements above 
where a hearing is necessary to fully 
explore material factual issues 
identified by the person requesting the 
hearing. A notice of such hearing shall 
be published by the Department in the 
Federal Register. The Department may 
decline to hold a hearing where: (1) The 
request for the hearing does not meet 
the requirements above; (2) the only 
issues identified for exploration at the 
hearing are matters of law; or (3) the 
factual issues identified can be fully 
explored through the submission of 
evidence in written (including 
electronic) form. 

WARNING: All comments received will be 
included in the public record without change 
and may be made available online at http:// 
www.regulations.gov, including any personal 
information provided, unless the comment 
includes information claimed to be 
confidential or other information whose 
disclosure is restricted by statute. If you 
submit a comment, EBSA recommends that 
you include your name and other contact 
information in the body of your comment, 
but DO NOT submit information that you 
consider to be confidential, or otherwise 
protected (such as Social Security number or 
an unlisted phone number) or confidential 
business information that you do not want 
publicly disclosed. However, if EBSA cannot 
read your comment due to technical 
difficulties and cannot contact you for 
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